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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

PATRICK HALEY, on behalf of himself o .
and all others similarly situated, Civil Action No. __
Plaintiff, - COMPLAINT - CLASS
ACTION
V.
DELTA AIRLINES, INC., JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Defendant. EXEMPT FROM FILING
FEES UNDER 38 U.S.C. §
4323(h)(1)

Plaintiff Patrick Haley, on behalf of himself and other similarly situated
individuals, by and through his attorneys, alleges as follows:
INTRODUCTION
1. This is a class action under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (“USERRA”), 38 U.S.C. § 4301 et seq., on behalf of
current and former employees of Delta Airlines, Inc. (“Delta”) who took short-
term mulitary leave (i.e., leave of 30 days or less) from their employment with

Delta that was not paid.

2. Since at [east April 30, 2007, Defendant Delta has had a policy and

practice of providing paid leave to employees when they take certain short-term
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leaves of absence from their employment with Delta, but not providing
employees paid leave when they take short-term military leave (i.e., military
leave that lasts 30 consecutive days or fewer). For example, Delta has provided
fully paid leave to employees when they take sick leave or bereavement leave
(i.e., paid leave at their normal wages or salaries), and provides at least
differential pay to employees who take leave for jury duty (i.e., their normal
wages or salaries minus any stipend received for jury service), but has never
provided any wages or salaries to employees who have taken short-term military
leave of 30 days or less.

3. USERRA requires military leave to be treated no less favorably than
any other forms of comparable leave that an employer provides to its employees.
By providing paid leave to employees who take jury duty leave, bereavement
leave, and other comparable forms of leave, Delta was obligated by USERRA §
4316(b) to do the same for its employees who take short-term military leave. By
failing to do so, Delta violated USERRA’s mandate to treat military leave no less
favorably than other comparable forms of non-military leave.

4. By continuing to pay employees during periods of jury duty,
bereavement leave, and other comparable forms of short-term leave, while failing

to provide paid leave for Employees during short-term military leave, Delta has
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violated USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316(b).

5. This action seeks a declaration that Delta violated USERRA §
4316(b) by failing to provide paid leave to Plaintiff and members of the proposed
Class during periods of short-term military leave, an order requiring Delta to pay
its employees during short-term military leave in the future, so long as Delta
continues to pay employees when they take other forms of comparable leave, and
an order requiring Delta to provide Plaintiff and members of the Class the pay
they should have earned during their periods of short-term military leave,

consistent with the requirements of USERRA..

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28
U.S.C. § 1331, because this action arises under USERRA, a federal law. This
Court also has subject matter jurisdiction over the USERRA claim pursuant to 38
U.S.C. § 4323(b)(3), which provides the district courts of the United States with
jurisdiction over any USERRA action brought against a private employer. Delta
is a private employer within the meaning of 38 U.S.C. § 4303(4)(A), because it
“pays salary or wages for work performed or [] has control over employment
opportunities.”

7. Venue is proper in this District because Delta is headquartered in
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this District, and is also proper pursuant to under 38 U.S.C. § 4323(c)(2) because
it maintains a place of business in this District. Venue is also proper in this
District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2), as a substantial part of the events
giving rise to the claims in this action occurred in this District.

PARTIES

8.  Plaintiff Patrick Haley resides in Seattle, Washington. He was
employed by Delta or its predecessor company, Northwest Airlines Corp.
(“Northwest™) from 1995 until September 2011, Haley was based at the
Minneapolis-Saint Paul International Airport, where he worked for Northwest
from 1995 until it was acquired by Delta in 2008. After working for Delta in
Minneapolis-Saint Paul, in October 2009, Haley was transferred to the Seattle-
Tacoma International Airport where he worked as a Cargo Operations Service

Manager until his retirement in September 2011.

9.  Haley enlisted in the Air Force Reserve in 1991. Since that time,
Haley has routinely taken short-term military leave to serve in the Air Force
Reserve. Haley retired from the Air Force Reserve on October 20, 2020.
Plaintiff did not receive any paid leave when he took short-term military leave

from Delta.

10.  Delta Airlines Inc. is a publicly traded company headquartered in
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Atlanta, Georgia. It is the second-largest airline in the world, serving nearly 200
million travelers a year. Delta is Northwest’s successor in interest, having
merged with Northwest on December 31, 2009, at which time Northwest operated
as a wholly owned subsidiary of Delta until the companies fully integrated their
operations in 2010. Delta is an employer within the meaning of USERRA, as it
“pays salary or wages for work performed” and “has control over employment
opportunities” for Plaintiff and the proposed Class Members. 38 U.S.C. §
4303(4)(A).
CILASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
11, Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of the following Class:

all current and former employees who work or worked for Delta

Airlines or Northwest Airlines at a location in a jurisdiction

covered by USERRA (i.e., the United States and its territories)

from April 30, 2007 to the present who (A) took Short-Term

Military Leave (i.e., 30 days or less) in one or more years during

their employment with Delta (or Northwest from May 31, 2007)

to the present; and (B) during such period of Short-Term Military

Leave did not receive the regular wages or salary that they would
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have earned had they continued to work their ordinary work
schedules.
Excluded from the class are the Judge assigned to the case and

any of his or her relatives.
Impracticality of Joinder

12, The Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.
According to Delta’s most recent annual report, Delta has approximately 72,000 U.S.
employees. Delta Air Lines, Inc., Annual Report (Form 10-K), at 7 (Feb. 12, 2021).
Upon information and belief, there are thousands of former and current Delta

employees who are members of the proposed Class.

13. Delta maintains operations throughout all 50 of the United States,
Washington D.C., and Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the members of the Class are

geographically dispersed across the country.

Commonality

14. The central question in this case, which will generate a common
answer, is whether Delta’s policy or practice of failing to provide paid leave to
employees during periods of military leave, while providing paid leave for other
comparable forms of non-military leave, violates USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316(b).

I3, Plaintiff’s claims raise subsidiary common questions, including the
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following:

(2) whether Delta maintains a policy or practice of failing to pay its
employees when they take short-term military leave;
(b) whether Delta maintains a policy or practice of providing paid
leave to employees when they take other forms of non-military leave,
such as jury duty, bereavement leave, and sick leave;
(c) whether under USERRA § 4316(b) short-term military leave is
comparable to jury duty, bereavement leave, sick leave, and any other
forms of non-military leave for which Delta has provided normal
wages or salaries to its employees;
(d) what relief should be awarded, including what types of
injunctive and monetary relief; and

(¢e)  whether Delta’s violations of USERRA were willful, such that

it should be required to pay liquidated damages to Plaintiff and the

Class Members.

16.  Because Delta adopted and applied a uniform policy or practice of
not providing paid leave to employees when they take short-term military leave,
these questions will produce common answers for all members of the proposed

Class.
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17. As Delta acted in a uniform, systematic manner with respect to the
Class, all members of the Class suffered the same type of injury based on a single
policy or practice, and resolving the claims of the Class will be based on common
legal and factual questions.

18. Because Delta’s policy or practice of failing to provide paid leave to
Employees when they take short-term military leave, while providing paid leave
to Employees when they take other comparable forms of leave, was applied
uniformly to the Class, the issues relating to the relief that Class Members should
receive are also common. To the extent that the policy or practice is found to
have violated USERRA, the determination of the amounts to be paid to members
of the Class will be formulaic and can be readily calculated.

Typicality

19.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the other members of the Class,
because the claims challenge a uniform policy or practice by which Delta failed
to provide paid leave to employees when they take short-term military leave,
while providing paid leave to employees when they take other comparable forms
of leave, and because all Class Members all were injured by the same uniform

policy or practice.
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Adequacy

20.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of other

members of the Class.

21.  Plaintiff does not have any conflict with any other member of the
Class. Plaintiff understands his obligations as a class representative and is prepared
to fulfill his duties as class representative.

22.  Delta has no unique defenses against the Plaintiff that would interfere
with Plaintiff’s representation of the Class.

23.  Plaintiff is represented by counsel with significant experience in
prosecuting class action litigation, including class action litigation involving rights

and benefits of servicemembers under USERRA..

Rule 23(b)(3)

24.  This action can be maintained as a class action under Rule 23(b)(3)
of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, because the questions of law and fact
common to the members of the Class predominate over questions affecting only
individual members, and a class action is superior to other available methods for
the fair and efficient resolution of this controversy.

25.  The common questions of law and fact concern whether Delta’s

policy of failing to provide paid leave to employees when they take short-term
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military leave, while providing paid leave to Employees when they take other
comparable forms of leave, violated USERRA. As the members of the Class
were all employees of Delta who took short-term military leave and their
compensation was affected by those violations, common questions related to
Delta’s liability will necessarily predominate over any individual questions. As
the calculation of Class Members’ wages and/or salaries during periods of
military leave can be readily calculated based on their wage and/or salary rates,
and relief primarily consists of a declaration and an order requiring Delta to pay
the Class Members the wages or salaries they are owed consistent with USERRA,
common questions as to remedies will likewise predominate over any individual
issues.

26. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and
efficient resolution of this controversy. The common issues will be efficiently
resolved in a single class proceeding rather than multiple proceedings. Class
cettification is a superior method of proceeding in this action, because it will
obviate the need for unduly duplicative litigation that might result in inconsistent
judgments about Defendant’s obligations under USERRA and of the remedy that
should be provided under USERRA.

27.  Inaddition, the members of the Class have a strong interest in a

10
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unitary adjudication of the issues presented in this action. Many members of the
Class are unlikely to have sufficient damages to justify pursuing an individual
action in federal court or to obtain counsel to pursue an individual action, but all
Class Members would benefit from a class action that obtains relief for all
members of the Class,

28.  This is an appropriate forum for these claims because, among other
reasons, jurisdiction and venue are proper, and Delta is headquartered in this
District, a number of class members are likely located in this District and there

are no difficulties in managing this case as a class action.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

D ’s Policv and Practice Resarding Militar ave

29.  When a servicemember employee of Delta takes short-term military
leave, Delta does not provide any paid leave to the employee. However, when an
employee of Delta is required to be absent from his or her employment at Delta
for a brief period of time for any one of a number of non-military reasons,
including that the employee is sick or needs to address the death of a family
member, Delta continues to pay the employee’s normal wages or salary during
his or her absence. And when a Delta employee is required to perform jury

service, Delta continues to pay their normal wages or salary, less any stipend

I1
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received for jury service. Upon information and belief, the current practices
described in this paragraph have been Delta’s policies or practices since at least
April 30, 2007.

USERRA Required Delta to Provide the Same Rights and Benefits to
Employees Who Took Military Leave as Employees Who Took Comparable

Forms of Leave

30.  USERRA § 4316(b)(1) provides in relevant part that “a person who
is absent from a position of employment by reason of service in the uniformed
services shall be”

(A) deemed to be on furlough or leave of absence while performing
such service; and

(B) entitled to such other rights and benefits not determined by
seniority as are generally provided by the employer of the person
to employees having similar seniority, status, and pay who are on
furlough or leave of absence under a contract, agreement, policy,
practice, or plan in effect at the commencement of such service or
established while such person performs such service.

38 U.S.C. § 4316(b)(1).

31.  Accordingly, if an employer provides non-seniority rights and
benefits to similarly situated employees, including compensation, USERRA §
4316(b)(1) requires the employer to provide the same rights and benefits to
employees during their military leave. See id.; 20 C.F.R. § 1002.150(a). As the

Department of Labor’s implementing regulations state, the “most significant

12
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factor to compare” two types of leave to determine if they are a “comparable form
of leave” under USERRA is “the duration of the leave.” 20 C.F.R. §
1002.150(b). In addition, “other factors such as the purpose of the leave and the
ability of the employee to choose when to take the leave should also be
considered.” Jd.

Delta Violat RA Because it Fail rovide Paid Lea
Emplove hen They Took Military Leave, But Provided Paid Leave to

Employees When They Took Comparable Forms of Non-Military Leave

32. Pursuant to Delta’s policy or practice of failing to provide paid leave
to employees during periods of short-term military leave, Delta failed to provide
paid leave to Plaintiff and the thousands of members of the Class during each
period in which they took short-term military leave since April 30, 2007.

33. Upon information and belief, since at least April 30, 2007, Delta
provided paid leave to employees while they were on leave from their
employment with Delta because of jury duty, illness, or bereavement.

34. The duration of jury leave, sick leave, or bereavement leave is
comparable to the duration of military leave. Each of these types of leaves most
commonly lasts several days, and usually does not last more than a couple of
weeks.

35.  Jury leave, sick leave, and bereavement leave, like short-term

13
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military leave, are ordinarily involuntary. Jury duty is required by federal, state,
or local law. Bereavement leave occurs due to a death in the employee’s family.,
Sick leave is taken because of an unforeseen illness. And military leave occurs
due to a servicemember’s obligation to perform military service in the Armed
Forces.

36. In addition, the purpose of jury duty is the same as the purpose of
military leave: to perform service for our government and to engage in public
service for the benefit of our society.

37. Delta’s policy or practice of failing to provide paid leave to
employees when they take short-term military leave, while providing paid leave
to employees when they take other comparable forms of non-military leave,
violates USERRA § 4316, because Delta denies its employees a non-seniority
right or benefit that it provides to similarly situated employees who are on
furlough or leave of absence. 38 U.S.C. § 4316(b).

38.  This policy has unlawfully denied Delta’s employees the paid leave

they should receive when they engage in short-term military leave,

Plaintiff’s USERRA-Protected Militarv L.eave

39.  Since joining the Air Force Reserve in 1991, Plaintiff routinely took

short-term military leave while he was employed that lasted between one and

14
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three days, and in doing so engaged in military service that qualified as service in

the uniformed services within the meaning of USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4303(13).
40.  During the time that Plaintiff took short-term military leave, Delta

(and Northwest) did rnot pay Plaintiff the wages that he would have earned had he

not taken such military leave.

COUNTI
VIOLA TION OF USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316(b)(1)

41.  Plamtiff hereby repeats and incorporates the allegations contained in
the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

42. USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316(b)(1), provides that “a person who is
absent from a position of employment by reason of service in the uniformed
services shall be (A) deemed to be on furlough or leave of absence while
performing such service; and (B) entitled to such other rights and benefits not
determined by seniority as are generally provided by the employer of the person
to employees having similar seniority, status, and pay who are on furlough or
leave of absence under a contract, agreement, policy, practice, or plan in effect at
the commencement of such service or established while such person performs
such service.”

43.  The U.S. Department of Labor’s regulations that implement and

interpret USERRA § 4316(b)(1) provide that “[i]f the non-seniority benefits to

15
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which employees on furlough or leave of absence are entitled vary according to
the type of leave, the employee must be given the most favorable treatment
accorded to any comparable form of leave when he or she performs service in the
uniformed services.” 20 C.F.R. § 1002.150(b). The “duration of leave” “may be
the most significant factor” to determine whether two forms of leave are
comparable, and other relevant factors include “the purpose of the leave and the
ability of the employee to choose when to take the leave.” Id.

44.  As described above, Delta has maintained a policy or practice of
failing to provide paid leave to employees when they take short-term military
leave, while providing paid leave to employees when they take other comparable
forms of short-term non-military leave, such as jury duty, sick leave, or
bereavement leave.

45.  As described above, these forms of leave — jury duty, sick leave, and
bereavement leave — are comparable to military leave in terms of the duration,
purpose, and/or the ability of the employee to determine whether to take the
leave.

46. By adopting and applying a uniform policy or practice of failing to
provide paid leave to the Class Members when they take short-term military

leave, Delta has denied the Class Members the same rights and benefits, including

16
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compensation, that Delta provided to employees who took comparable forms of
non-military leave, including jury duty leave, sick leave, and bereavement leave,
and Delta has failed to provide Class Members the most favorable treatment
accorded to employees who take comparable forms of non-military leave. By
doing so, Delta violated and continues to violate USERRA § 4316(b)(1).

47.  Due to Delta’s failure to comply with USERRA § 4316(b)(1),
Plaintiff and other members of the Class received lower wages, salaries, and
compensation than they would have received had Delta complied with USERRA
and the Department of Labor’s implementing regulations.

48.  Upon information and belief, Delta’s violation of USERRA §
4316(b)(1) was willful. Accordingly, Delta should be required to pay liquidated

damages pursuant to 38 U.S.C, § 4323(d)(1)(C).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered against Delta on
all claims and respectfully requests that this Court award the following relief:

A.  Declare that Delta’s policy or practice by which Delta failed to
provide paid leave to employees during periods of short-term military leave,

while providing paid leave to employees when they took other comparable forms

17
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of non-military leave, violated the rights of Plaintiff and the Class Members
under USERRA § 4316(b);

B.  Declare that Delta’s violations of USERRA were willful under 38
U.S.C. §4323(d)(1)}(C);

C.  Declare that Delta must provide paid leave to employees during
periods of short-term military leave;

D.  Require Delta to comply with USERRA § 4316(b) by providing
Plaintiff and the Class Members paid leave during periods of short-term military
leave;

E.  Require Delta to pay Plaintiff and the Class Membets the wages,
salaries, and/or compensation they should have received for periods of short-term
military leave, in accordance with USERRA and the Court’s declaration;

F. Order Delta to pay all members of the Class liquidated damages
pursuant to 38 U.S.C. § 4323(d)(1)(C);

G.  Award pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on any monetary
relief awarded or required by order of this Court;

H.  Require Delta to pay attorneys’ fees, expert witness fees, litigation
expenses and costs pursuant to 38 U.S.C. § 4323(h) and/or order the payment of

reasonable fees and expenses in this action to Plaintiff’s Counsel based on the

18
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common benefit and/or common fund doctrine out of any money or benefit
recovered for the Class in this Action; and
L. Grant such other and further relief as the Court deems proper, just

and/or equitable.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury for all causes of action and issues for
which trial by jury is available.

Dated: March 16,2021 Respectfully submitted,

By: /s/ Stephen Anderson
Stephen J. Anderson

Georgia Bar. No. 018325

Kenneth S. Nugent, P.C.

4227 Pleasant Hill Road

Building 11, Suite 300

Duluth GA 30096

Tel: (770) 820-0823

Fax: (770) 820-0723

Email: sanderson@attorneykennugent.com

R. Joseph Barton*

BLOCK & LEVITON LLP

1735 20th Street NW
Washington, DC 20009

Tel: (202) 734-7046

Fax: (617) 507-6020

Email: jbarton@blockleviton.com
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Michael J. Scimone*

OUTTEN & GOLDEN LLP

685 Third Avenue, 25th Floor

New York, N.Y. 10017

Telephone: (212) 245-1000
Facsimile: (646) 509-2055

Email: mscimone@outtengolden.com

Peter Romer-Friedman®*
GUPTA WESSLER PLLC
1900 L Street, NW, Suite 312
Washington, DC 20036
Telephone (202) 888-1741
Email:peter@guptawessler.com

Thomas G. Jarrard*

LAW OFFICE OF THOMAS JARRARD
PLLC

1020 N. Washington St.

Spokane, WA 99201

Telephone: (425) 239-7290

Email: Tjarrard@att.net

Matthew Z. Crotty*

CROTTY & SON LAW FIRM, PLLC
905 W. Riverside Ave, Suite 409
Spokane, WA 99201

Telephone: (509) 850-7011

Email: matt@crottyandson.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Proposed
Class

* Pro hac vice motion to be filed

20



Case 1:21-cv-01076-CC Document 1-1 Filed 03/16/21 Page 1 of 2
JS44 (Rev. 10/2020 NDGA) CIVIL COVER SHEET

The J544 civit cover sheet and the Informntion contained herein neither veplace nor supplement the fing and service of plesdings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by
local rules of court, This form is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of Inftlating the civil doeket record, (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ATTACHED)

I. (a) PLAINTIFF(S) DEFENDANT(S)
Patrick Haley, on behalf of himself and all others Delta Air Lines, Inc.
similarly situated
(b) COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED
PLAINTIFF DEFENDANT
(EXCEPTIN 1.8, PLAINTIFF CASES) {IN U8, PLAINTIFE CASES ONLY)
NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USETHE LOCATION OF TIHE TRACT OF LAND
INVOLVED
(¢) ATTORNEY'S ra NAME, ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER, AND ATTORNEYS aexnoww
EMAIL ADDRESS)
Stephen J. Anderson
Kenneth S, Nugent, P.C.
4227 Pleasant Hill Road, Building 11, Suite 300
Duluth, Georgia
770-820-0823; sanderson@attorneykennugent.com
II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION 1. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES
{PLACE AN “X” IN ONE BOX ONLY) (PLACE AN “X" IN ONE BOX FOR PLAINTIFF AND ONE BOX FOR DEFENDANT)
{FOR DIVERSITY CASES ONLY)
} PLK DEF PLF DEF
Dl U.S. GOVERNMENT % FEDERAL QUESTION D 1 D 1 CITIZEN OF THIS BTATE D 4 D 4 INCORPORATED OR PRINCIPAL
PLAINTIFE (U.S, GOVERNMENT NOT A PARTY) PLACL OF BUSINESS IN TIIS STATE
D 2 U5, GOVERNMENT D 4 DIVERSKTY I:]2 D2 CITIZEN OF ANOTHER STATE D 5 D §  INCORPORATED AND PRINCIPAL
DEFENDANT UNDICATL CITIZENSHIP OF PARTIES PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTIHER STATE
INTTEM N D D D D
3 3 CITIZEN OR SUBIECT OF A 3 & FOREIGN NATION
FORELGN COUNTRY

IV. RIGIN (PLACE AN X “IN ONE }OX ONLY)
; D E] ) D I:i TRANSFERRED FROM El MULTIMSTRICT [] APTEAL TQ DISTRICT JUDGE
T ORIGINAL 2 REMOVED FROM 3 REMANDED FROM 4 REINSTATED OR 3 ANOTHER DISTRICT 6 7

LITIGATION - FROM MAGISTRATE JUDGE
PROCEEDING STATE COURT APPELLATE COURT REOPENED (Specily Disirict) TRANSFER JUDGMENT
MULTIBISTRICT
§LITIGATION -
DIRECT FILE

N
V. CAUSE OF ACTION (crre 1 u5. CIVIL, STATUTE UNDER WHICH YOU ARE, FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE - DO NOT CITE
JURISDICTIONAL STATUTES UNLESS DIVERS]TY)

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act ("USERRA") 38 U.S.C. 4301 et seq.

(IF COMPLEX, CHECK REASON BELOW)

D 1. Unusually large number of parties. D 6. Problems locating or preserving evidence

. Unusually large number of claims or defenses. 0. Pending parallel investigations or actions by government.
D 3. Factual issues are exceptionally complex E.] 8. Multiple use of experts.

[]4. Greater than normal volume of evidence. D 9. Need for discovery outside United States boundaries.
D 5. Extended discovery period is needed. |:|l 0. Existence of highly technical issues and proof,

CONTINUED ON REVERSE

i’FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

PLYING fAQ, JUDGE (IFP)

NATURE OF SUIT_.

“CAUSE OF ACTION___.




Case 1:21-cv-01076-CC Document 1-1 Filed 03/16/21 Page 2 of 2

VI. NATURE OF SUIT (PLACE AN “X” IN ONE BOX ONLY)

CONTRACT - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
D 150 RECOVERY OF OVERIPAYMENT &
ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENT
152 RECOVERY OF DEFAULTED STUDENT
LOANS (Excl, Veterans}
O 153 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT OF
VETERAN'S BENEFITS

CONTRACT - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
1O INSURANCE
@ 120 MARINE
130 MILLER ACT
140 NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT
[5| MEDICARE ACT
160 STOCKHOLDERS' SUITS
190 OTHER CONTRACT
195 CONTRACT PRODUCT LIABILITY
196 FRANCHISE

REAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK
200 LAND CONDEMNATION
220 FORECLOSURE
1230 RENT LEASE & EIECTMENT
240 TORTS TO LAND
245 TORT PRODUCT LIABILITY
] %0 ALL OTHER REAL PROPERTY

TORTS - PERSONAL INJURY - "4 MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK
310 AIRPLANE
315 AIRPLANE PRODUCT LIABILITY
320 ASSAULT, LIBEL & SLANDER
330 FEDERAL EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
340 MARINE
345 MARINE PRODUCT LIABILITY
350 MOTOR VEHICLE
355 MOTOR VEHICLE PRODUCT LIABILITY
360 OTHER PERSONAL INJURY
362 PERSOMAL INJURY - MEDICAL
MALPRACTICE
[] 365 PERSONAL INJURY - PRODUCT LIABILITY
367 PERSONAL INJURY - HEALTH CARE/
PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCT LIABILITY
[ 368 ASBESTOS PERSONAL INJURY PRODUCT
LIABILITY

TORTS - PERSONAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS
DISCAVERY TRACK.
370 OTHER FRAUD
[ 371 TRUTH [N LENDING
380 OTHER PERSONAL PROPERTY DAMAGE
383 FROPERTY DAMAGE FRODUCT LIABILITY

BANKRUPTCY - 0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK,

1422 APPEAL 8 USC 158
] 423 WITHDRAWAL 28 USC 157

CIVIL RICGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
440 OTHER CIVIL RIGHTS
441 VOTING
442 EMPLOYMENT
443 HOUSING/ ACCOMMODATIONS
445 AMERICANS with DISABILITEES - Employment
L] 446 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES - Other
[] M8 EDUCATION

IMMIGRATION - “0" MONTHS RISCOVERY TRACK
[] 462 NATURALIZATION APPLICATION
] 465 OTHER IMMIGRATION ACTIONS

PRISONER PETITIONS - "0 MONTHS DISCOVERY
TR

463 HABEAS CORPUS- Alien Detainge
510 MOTIONS TCO VACATE SENTENCE
530 HABEAS CORPUS
533 HABEAS CORPUS DEATH PENALTY
540 MANDAMUS & OTHER
550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Fited Pro se
355 PRISON CQNDITION(S) - Filed P'ro se
[T 560 CIVIL DETAINEE: CONDITIONS OF
CONFINEMENT

PRISONER PETITIONS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

| ] $50 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed by Counse!

[ 355 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Kiled by Counsel

FORFEITURE/PENALTY - 4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK
[ 625 DRUG RELATED SEIZURE OF PROPERTY
21 USC 881
[ 690 OTHER
LABOR - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK

[ 710 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
ﬁ 720 LABOR/MGMT. RELATIONS

40 RAILWAY LABOR ACT

751 FAMILY tud MEDICAL LEAVE ACT
] 790 OTHER LABOR LITIGATION
[] 791 EMPL, RET. INC. SECURITY ACT

PROPERTY RIGHTS - 4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

T 820 COPYRIGHTS
840 TRADEMARK
880 DEFEND TRADE SECRETS ACT OF 2016 {DTSA)

PROPERTY RIGETS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY
R i

Al
L s3oeatent
] 835 PATENT-ABBREVIATED NEW DRUG
APPLICATIONS (ANDA} - a/kfa
Hatch-Waxman cases

SOCIAL SECURITY - "0" MONTLS DISCOYERY
TRACK r——

861 LA (1395M1)
862 BLACK LUNG (923)
863 DIWC (405(s))
863 DIWW (405(2))
[C] 864 SSID TITLE XVI
] 865 RSE(405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

i | 870 TAXES (U.S. Plaintiff or Defondam)
[3 871 RS - THIRD PARTY 26 USC 7609

OTHER STATUTES - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
mACK
375 FALSE CLAIMS ACT
376 Qui Tum 31 USC 3729(n)
400 STATE REAPPORTIONMENT
430 BANKS AND BANKING
450 COMMERCE/ICC RATES/GTC.
460 DEPORTATION
470 RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT
ORGANIZATIONS
480 CONSUMER CREDIT
485 TBLEPHONE CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT
480 CABLE/SATELLITE TV
890 OTHER STATUTORY ACTIONS
891 AGRICULTURAL ACTS
893 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
895 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 899
$95 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT /
REVIEW OR APPEAL OF AGENCY DECISION
950 CONSTITUTIONALITY OF STATE STATUTES

0 0MOOoms ITII'II'!FII'IFI

=
=
25

STATUTES - 8" MONTHS DISCOVERY

K
E 410 ANTITRUST
850 SECURITIES / COMMOINTIES / EXCHANGE

OTHER STATUTES - “0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

I 896 ArmitraTION
(Confirm / Vacate / Order / Modifyy

* PLEASE NOTE DISCOVERY
TRACK FOR EACH CASE
TYPE. SEE LOCAL RULE 26.3

VII.REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:

JURY DEMAND

CHECK [ﬁ’ASS ACTION UNDER F.R.Civ.P. 23

DEMAND §

YES D NO (CHECK YES ONLY IFf DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT)

VIIL RELATED/REFILED CASE(S) IF ANY

JUDGE

Judde Clarence Cooper

DOCKET NO.

1:21-cv-01005-CC

CIVIL CASES ARE DEEMED RELATED IF THE PENDING CASE INVOLVES: (CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)
1. PROPERTY INCLUDED IN AN FARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT. .
"%, SAME ISSUE OF FACT OR ARISES OUT OF THE SAME EVENT OR TRANSACTEON INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SULT,
[Z13. VALIITY OR INERINGEMENT OF THY SAME PATENT, COPYRIGHT OR TRADEMARK INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT,
1 4. APPEALS ARISING OUT OF THE SAME BANKRUPTCY CASE AND ANY CASE RELATED THERETO WHICH HAVE BEEN DECIDED BY THE SAME

BANKRUPTCY JUDGE.

[T15. REPETITIVE CASES FILED BY PRO SE LITIGANTS.
[[3 6. COMPANION OR RELATED CASE TO CASE(S) BEING SIMULTANEQUSLY FILED (INCLUDE ABBREVIATED STYLE OF OTHER CASE(S)):

17 EITHER 8AMY OR ALL OF THE PARTIES AND 1SSUES IN THIS CASE WERE PREYIOUSLY INVOLVED IN CASE NO.
[} Cis Nor (check one box) SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME CASE.

DISMISSED, Auis ¢

» WHICH WAS

3/16/2021

SIG :NA’!‘URE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
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